OA 5-10-85 IN THE SUPREME FUR IF FER DA

SID J. WHITE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS REGULATION,)	MAR 4 1985	
DIVISION OF FLORIDA LAND SALES, CONDOMINIUMS AND MOBILE HOMES,)	CLERK, SUPREME COURT A	
Petitioner,)	ByChief Deputy Clerk	
v.)	CASE NO. 65,814	
HERMAN E. SIEGEL,)	DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL,	
Respondent.)	THIRD DISTRICT, NO. 83-2113	
)		
TOWERS OF QUAYSIDE HOMEOWNERS')		
ASSOCIATION, INC.,)	CASE NO. 65,834	
Petitioner,)	DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL	
V.)	THIRD DISTRICT, NO. 83-2113	
HERMAN E. SIEGEL,)		
Respondent.)		

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Herman Siegel, the owner of a condominium unit in the Towers of Quayside No. 2 Condominium, in Dade County, Florida, petitioned the Division of Florida Land Sales and Condominiums, in April, 1983, for the issuance of a declaratory statement. The petition requested the Division to find the Towers of Quayside Homeowners' Association (hereinafter "Homeowners' Association") governed by Chapter 718, Florida Statutes, the Condominium Act. If the Homeowners' Association is so governed, then the provisions of the Condominium Act governing condominium associations would apply to it, including section 718.301. This would enable the unit owners to elect no less than one-third of the Homeowners' Association Board. Obtaining this election right was the purpose upon which Mr. Siegel's petition was premised.

The Homeowners' Association intervened in the declaratory statement proceedings and opposed the request of Siegel.

The Homeowners' Association argued that it was nothing more than a homeowners' association and not a statutory condominium association.

The Division issued a declaratory statement on August 28, 1983. (R. -14). Contrary to Mr. Siegel's request, the Division declared that the Homeowners' Association was not a condominium association within the meaning of the Condominium Act. The declaratory statement was appealed to the Third District Court of Appeal by Mr. Siegel, where both the Division and the Homeowners' Association appeared as co-appellees. The Third District held

that the Homeowners' Association is a condominium association and consequently reversed the Division's declaratory statement.

Siegel v. Division of Florida Land Sales and Condominiums, et

al., 453 So.2d 414 (Fla. 3DCA 1984). It further granted Mr.

Siegel's motion for attorney's fees against the intervenor Homeowners' Assocaition. Motions for Rehearing were denied on July

30, 1984.

On August 27, 1984, the Division filed its notice to invoke this court's discretionary jurisdiction. The Homeowners' Association filed a similar notice on August 28, 1984. See Supreme Court Case No. 65,834. Jurisdictional briefs were filed and the Division's Motion to Consolidate the two appeals was granted on September 25, 1984. Motion to File Briefs as Amicus Curiae were filed by Builders Association of South Florida, Gardens of Kendall Property Owners Association, Inc. and Florida Home Builders Association. Those motions were granted on February 12, 1985.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Towers of Quayside is a community which, when all proposed units are constructed, will consist of 984 units. At the time of issuance of the declaratory statement, there were completed four condominiums within the community including Towers of Quayside No. 2 Condominium in which Mr. Siegel resided. Each of the four condominiums are separate from the others and each is governed by a separate condominium association pursuant to each separate declaration of condominium. (Id. at 416 f.n. 4). The community contains within it two undeveloped sites which are proposed to serve as condominium sites, but which have not yet been developed

as such. As to these undeveloped sites, Article I, Section 14 of the Declaration of Convenants provides a definition of "dwelling unit" which would permit the developer to develop these sites in a manner other than as condominiums.

In addition to the four developed and two undeveloped sites, the community also consists of certain properties denominated "common properties", which are governed by another document apart from the declarations of condominium. (Id. at 415). This document is a Declaration of Convenants and Restrictions. It confers upon the Homeowners' Association the power to operate the "common properties". The Homeowners' Association's membership, for the time being, consists exclusively of condominium unit owners. However, its membership will eventually include all "unit owners" whether condominium or other. The Homeowners' Association operates the common properties, consisting of a health spa, marina, restaurant, and tennis courts, among others. The "common properties" are separate and distinct from the common elements of each of the condominiums.

Each of the four condominiums is composed of exclusively owned units to which there is appurtenant an undivided share in the common elements. The common elements include such property as parking lots, terraces, recreational amenities located in the plaza deck, a swimming pool, balconies and air conditioning equipment. The common elements of each of the four condominiums are operated by the respective condominium association independent of the Homeowners' Association.

Mr. Siegel argued before the court that the Homeowners' Association was, in reality, a condominium association because

it was comprised solely of condominium unit owners. This test was referred to in the proceeding as the "constituency" test. The Division and the Homeowners' Association, drawing authority from the Condominium Act's definition of "condominium association", in section 718.103(2), Florida Statutes, argued that the Homeowners' Association was not a condominium association because it was not "the corporate entity responsible for the operation of a condominium". Section 718.103(2), Florida Statutes. This function, the Division argued, as to each of the four condominiums rested with the respective condominium associations. This test was referred to in the proceeding as the "function" test.

The court held that under <u>either</u> test, the constituency test or the function test, the Homeowners' Association is a "condominium association", and therefore governed by section 718.301, Florida Statutes, and the rights therein bestowed upon unit owners. In the course of the opinion the court found that the Homeowners' Association does, to a meaningful extent, operate condominium property. <u>Siegel</u>, <u>supra</u>, at 420.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The court below was incorrect in its finding that the common properties are in fact condominium property. It is only the use rights in the common property that condominium purchasers in Quayside receive. Further, the term "condominium property" has several meanings within the context of Chapter 718. Several sections use it interchangeably with the term "common elements". Other sections negate the inference that it includes mere use rights of property unassociated with actual ownership of the underlying land. At best it is only the limited use rights in the common properties that might qualify even under most expansive construction of the statutory definition of "condominium property."

The court below erred in its conclusion that the Homeowners' Association operated condominium property. It ignored the analysis used by the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Palm Beach Leisureville Community Association, Inc. v. Raines, 398 So.2d 471 (Fla. 4DCA 1981), approved 413 So.2d 30 (Fla. 1982). It further ignored this court's finding in its affirmance in Raines, supra, that functions similar to that performed by the Homeowners' Association here do not make such an association the corporate entity responsible for the operation of a condominium. It instead chose to elevate the few functions performed by the Homeowners' Association on condominium property to the status of "administration and management". By their very nature, administration and management connote control and direction. Those functions, by the terms of section 718.302(3), are reserved to the designated condominium association. There can be only one such association and it is that one designated in the original documents.

The lower court erred in its interpretation and application of the constituency test by applying the test to the then existing stage of development of the community. Such an approach is both illogical and confusing. It will result in day-to-day fluctuations of the status of a particular association, from condominium association to a mere homeowners' association. It will leave all parties in doubt as to their legal rights and responsibilities.

A more consistent approach is one which examines the documents at their inception to determine if the association may ever include non-condominium owners. If this test is correctly applied, the Homeowners' Association would not meet it due to the fact that the documents permit non-condominium owners membership in the Homeowners' Association. The only true condominium association is that association designated in the declaration.

WAS THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CORRECT IN ITS CONCLUSION THAT THE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION IS A CONDOMINIUM "ASSOCIATION" WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 718.103(2).

In its analysis of the correctness of the Division's declaratory statement, the court below posed three questions for purposes of its examination. These were:

- Does the Homeowners' Association operate condominium property;
- Are the common properties in fact condominium property; and
- 3. Does the Homeowners' Association exist solely for the purpose of serving condominium unit owners.

Siegel v. Division of Florida Land Sales and Condominiums et al., 453 So.2d 414, (Fla. 3DCA 1984).

From that point forward, the court examines the various positions of the parties including discussions of the "constituency" test and "function" test. It concludes:

Applying, appropriately, both the constituency test advanced by appellant, and the function test embraced by appellees, we conclude that the Homeowners' Association is a condominium "association" within the meaning of section 718.103(2) subject to ultimate control by unit owners in accordance with section 718.301.

Siegel, supra, at 420.

By its use of the term "appropriately" it must be assumed that the court felt that both tests should be applied in making a determination as to whether a given association is a "condominium association" as defined in section 718.103(2). The analysis to be followed in this brief will examine each of the two tests, address their appropriateness and address the correctness of the conclusions reached after application of the test. Of the three

questions posed, questions one and two have bearing on the function test and will be examined within that section of this brief.

Question number 3 will be examined within the text of the argument on the constituency test.

The first two questions posed by the court below examine whether the Homeowners' Association operates condominium property and what properties actually make up common property. For purposes of organizational clarity, this analysis will review those first two questions in reverse order. First, the analysis will focus on whether the common properties are condominium property. Secondly, the focus will shift to address the question of whether the Homeowners' Association operates any condominium property.

- A. WAS THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CORRECT IN ITS INTERPRETATION AND APPLICATION OF THE "FUNCTION" TEST?
 - 1. IS THE COMMON PROPERTY "CONDOMINIUM PROPERTY"?

In its opinion, the court below formulates the function test as: ". . .whether the entity operates a condominium or has sufficient powers that constitute condominium operation." Siegel, supra, at 417. The decision acknowledges that this test was employed by this court to defeat condominium status in Palm Beach Leisureville Community Association, Inc. v. Raines, 398 So.2d 471 (Fla. 4DCA 1981), approved 413 So.2d 30 (Fla. 1982). However, the court below then distinguished Raines. The court did so based upon its belief that this court's affirmance pivoted on the fact that the association in Raines served both condominium units and non-condominium single family homes. However, notwithstanding its conclusion that Raines is distinguishable, the lower court none-theless applied a function test. The court's opinion that the

function test was met in the instant case is based squarely upon its finding that the Homeowners' Association operates condominium property. Siegel, supra, at 420. It is respectfully submitted that the court below both misinterpreted this court's decision in Raines and, further, misapplied the function test in the instant case.

Chapter 718 contains the following definitions in section 718.103 upon which the lower court's opinion was based:

- (17) "Operation" or "operation of the condominium" includes the administration and management of the condominium property.
- (11) "Condominium property" means the lands, leaseholds and personal property that are subjected to condominium ownership, whether or not contiguous, and all improvements thereon and all easements and rights appurtenant thereto intended for use in connection with the condominium.

In applying the function test, the court below focused upon the language of the Declaration of Condominium and Declaration of Covenants. It found in the Declaration of Condominium a statement submitting to condominium ownership "...all other property, real, personal or mixed intended for use in connection therewith." It found in the covenants that "Every owner shall have a right and easement of ingress and egress and of common enjoyment in, to, and over the common properties which shall be appurtenant to and shall pass with title to every dwelling unit." Siegel, supra, at 419. The court then concluded that these sections submitted the common properties to the condominium form of ownership. Siegel, supra, at 420. It is submitted that such a conclusion is neither logical nor intended by the statutory scheme.

Rather than examining the statutory language as a whole,

the decision below isolates specific words and definitions, and then reaches its conclusion from that limited viewpoint. In finding that the common property constitutes condominium property, the effect of the decision is to choose form over substance. First, the court below has obviously concluded that all of the common property is condominium property. It reaches this conclusion despite the clear language of all documents that it is only "use rights" in that property which a condominium purchaser obtains. Using this theory, if the declaration had provided for an easement across the property of a neighboring shopping center, the shopping center would also be condominium property and the mall authorities would be a statutory condominium association under this test.

At best, only the <u>use rights</u> of the purchasers in and to the common property were declared to be a part of the condominium. However, even then the statute appears unclear as to whether these <u>are</u> "condominium property", as used in the definition of "operation of a condominium". The uncertainty arises due to the lack of precision used in the various sections of the statute. For example, it is one thing to say that the common property is "condominium property", and yet quite another to say it constitutes <u>common elements</u>. Yet, that is the very conclusion reached if one examines the definitions of "unit" and "common elements". Chapter 718 provides the following:

718.103(23) "Unit" means a part of the condominium property which is subject to exclusive ownership. . . .

718.103(6) "Common elements" means the portions of the condominium property which are not included in the units.

Using the above definitions, the common property, if it is

indeed part of the condominium property, then becomes part of the common elements and is owned by each unit owner. See, section 718.106 providing that there shall pass with each unit, as an appurtenance thereto, "[a]n undivided share in the common elements." But which owner owns what percentage? There is a different number of owners in each condominium. Are their shares determined by their percentage interest in their own condominium, or by their overall percentage share in the community as a whole? The problems are evident.

Simply put, the common properties are not "condominiumized".

Raines, 398 So.2d 471, 473. Merely because certain use rights are provided unit owners via their declaration, the entire scheme of ownership rights in the property should not be altered. While a literal reading of the definition of "condominium property" may lend itself to that conclusion, numerous other sections of the statute seem to equate that term with a more restrictive meaning; one which speaks only to the land and buildings on which the condominium is located, viz., the common elements. See 718.112(2) (c), 718.112(2) (d) 2, 718.112(2) (e), 718.1124, 718.118, 718.121 and particularly 718.202(5) and 718.504(11). The last listed section specifically negates any inference that condominium property includes property not owned but only used by the unit owners. The section requires that a developer state in the public offering statement;

(11) The arrangements for management of the association and maintenance and operation of the condominium property and of other property that will serve the unit owners of the condominium. [Emphasis added].

This distinction between the terms "condominium property" and the

phrase "other property that will serve the unit owners" leads credence to but one conclusion. That is, it is inappropriate to focus solely on the literal terms of the definition of "condominium property", as did the court below. Nothing of the common property, other than perhaps the use rights of the purchasers, can be said to be condominium property in its truest sense. The lower court was incorrect in its strict definitional approach to this second of its three questions posed. The common properties themselves are not condominium property.

2. DOES THE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION OPERATE CONDOMINIUM PROPERTY?

As the previous argument demonstrates, the only conceiveable type of "condominium property" contained within the common property is the purchasers' use rights therein. Assuming arguendo that the purchasers' use rights are in fact condominium property, the lower court's first question may be appropriately paraphrased as follows:

Are the duties of the Homeowners' Association as to the units, common elements, and purchaser use rights of such a nature as to rise to the level of managing and administering condominium property?

In answering this question, the court below took an approach which drastically conflicts with the approach affirmed by this court in Raines, 413 So.2d 30. In assessing the functions performed by the Homeowners' Association in this case, the lower court chose to find "administration and management" where little, if any, existed. The lower court focused on whether the Homeowners' Association managed any condominium property in any way whatsoever.

This court seemed to take the opposite approach in its affirmance in Raines. <u>Id.</u> This court there approved the opinion

of the Fourth District Court of Appeal and rejected the argument that the Homeowners' Association there was "the corporate entity responsible for the operation of a condominium", Raines, 413 So.2d at 32, despite the fact that the Homeowners' Association there did indeed have some degree of control over condominium property. In Raines, the Homeowners' Association had primary responsibility for maintaining all of the exterior areas of the condominium units, the power to approve and disapprove all transfers of title to condominium units and appurtenant common elements, and the power to fix and collect maintenance assessments for such services as lawn maintenance and building and road repair. In fact the Fourth District specifically held that:

Through the Association's articles of incorporation and a series of declarations of restrictions applicable to both the single family lot owners and the condominium unit owners the [Homeowners'] Association has extremely broad powers and duties.

Raines, 398 So.2d at 473.

Despite these "broad powers and duties", the court specifically found that the Homeowners' Association was "not responsible for the operation of any of the 21 condominiums." Id. at 474. [Emphasis added]. The court clarified this conclusion with an itemization of the numerous and substantial functions, powers and responsibilities which the statute requires the designated condominium associations to perform.

In contrast to the Homeowners' Association's powers, the Towers of Quayside No. 2 Condominium Association, Inc., has the statutory power and duty to operate and manage the condominium property of the Towers of Quayside No. 2 condominium. These

powers are listed in section 11 of the Declaration. (App. 12-13).

A summary of them is listed in paragraph 5 of the Declaratory

Statement. (R. 2-3). They include the following:

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