IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

DIVISION OF FLORIDA LAND SALES AND CONDOMINIUMS, DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS REGULATION; and THE TOWERS OF QUAYSIDE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., CASE NO. 65,814

FILED

APR 2 1985

Petitioners,

:

:

CLERK, SUPREIVIE COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

HERMAN E. SIEGEL, on behalf of himself and other unit owners of THE TOWERS OF QUAYSIDE NO. 2 CONDOMINIUM,

Respondent.

DIVISION OF FLORIDA LAND SALES AND CONDOMINIUMS, DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS REGULATION; and THE TOWERS OF QUAYSIDE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC.,

Petitioners,

v.

v.

HERMAN E. SIEGEL, etc.,

Respondent.

CASE NO. 65,834

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

Further, this "source" test will be satisfied, as a matter of law, as any agreement entered into by an association for use rights in recreation facilities, regardless of whether or not contiguous to the lands of the condominium, must be stated and fully described in the declaration of condominium, or its exhibits. \$718.114, Fla. Stat.; Waterford Point v. Fass, supra. Similarly, any use rights or obligations which run with the land of a condo-

minium unit, to be binding upon the unit owner, must be set forth in the declaration, as well. §§718.104(4)(1), 718.104(5), 718.106(2), Fla. Stat.

Therefore, under the Condominium Act as it has existed in recent times, the Palm Beach Leisureville community association would have to have been created in a manner which would satisfy the "source" test, once again leaving only the constituency test for consideration.

G. WHETHER THE THIRD DISTRICT ERRED IN DEALING WITH FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES AS THEY PRESENTLY EXIST, RATHER THAN WITH SPECULATION AS TO THE FUTURE.

Petitioners and Amici complain of the Third District's failure to take into account the developer's retained right to build something other than condominiums on the two undeveloped parcels (the ones identified in the legal description exhibit to the Declaration of Covenants as "Towers of Quayside No. 5 Condominium" and "Towers of Quayside No. 6 Condominium").

The Third District properly declined to deal with this speculative issue.

First, it is necessary to clarify the facts and positions taken below. The Condominium No. 5 and Condominium No. 6 parcels are not directly encumbered by the Declaration of Covenants at the present time. Instead, these proposed condominium parcels are <u>intended</u> to be encumbered in the future, by the developer executing Supplemental Declarations of Covenants. (App.B.1-2).

Next, this argument was not raised in Petitioners' Briefs to the Third District; rather, it was raised for the first time at oral argument, and then again on the Motions for Rehearing. Respondent's response was simply that <u>if and when</u> non-condominium properties are added to the HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION's jurisdiction, then the HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION may cease to be governed by Chapter 718.

Accordingly, the Third District properly declined to deal with this question. There is nothing in the record to suggest that the developer intends to build anything other than condominiums on the last two parcels. Presently, if the developer follows its expressed intent to develop these parcels as condominiums, the question will never arise.

Contrary to Amici THE GARDENS and BUILDERS ASSOCIATION's assertions on pages 17 and 18 of their Brief, the Third District's opinion does not vitiate the right of a developer to alter the nature of his project.

Indeed, there is just as much of a possibility that the undeveloped parcels (and part of the Common Properties) will be separated from the existing Towers of Quayside community.

Further, there is no documentation in the record to suggest the developer of a project similar to this one has ever changed plans in mid-stream in a way such as Petitioners and Amici suggest.

Therefore, the Third District was eminently correct in refusing to rule on a purely speculative question. The issue is not justiciable, not ripe for determination, and should be left for another day, when and if such a case or controversy arises.

It is also argued that one of the condominiums in The Towers of Quayside was created by conversion of an existing rental building, while the other buildings were condominiums from their inception. This fact is not established by the record. It is raised in a letter written by Petitioner HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION's attorney but was not supported anywhere in the record before the Third District. There is no document in the record indicating such a conversion. Instead, the record reflects only the existence of condominiums, and a development scheme contemplating solely condominiums in the future.

But what if one of the condominiums at The Towers of Quayside was created by conversion of an existing rental building to the condominium form of ownership, pursuant to §718.402, Fla. Stat.? If an owner of a building converts it to the condominium form of ownership, he does so subject to Chapter 718. If, in fact, the conversion of the former rental building is what turned HOME-OWNERS' ASSOCIATION into a Chapter 718 association, that is an interesting historical fact, and nothing more.

The development industry interests on this appeal (Petitioner HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION and Amici) claim they need the freedom to change plans in mid-stream, and turn a condominium community into a mixed community.

The development industry has that freedom. The decision of the Third District does not take it away.

For instance, at The Towers of Quayside, the Declaration of Covenants retains to the developer the right to not add future condominiums to the encumbrance of the covenants, to not build all of the intented Common Properties facilities, and to not convey to HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION all of the Common Properties' land. In other words, the developer retains the right to do other things with the undeveloped land. The developer's hands are not tied.

Indeed, if the mysterious, undefined "market forces" referred to by Petitioners and Amici (which are neither documented nor referred to in the record) slow down the market for luxury condominiums, won't these so-called "market forces" have the same effect on all luxury residential housing? Further, absolutely nothing prevents a developer of a condominium from renting unsold units should the market slow down.

Amici Curiae from the development industry are quite candid in their Complaint about the effect of the Third District's opinion: it requires them to turn over control of associations to the unit owners who are assessed by those associations at a point in time dictated by the Legislature, as opposed to when the developers want to turn over control. This battle, however, was fought and decided over ten years ago when the Legislature enacted the first "transfer of association control" statute, §711.66, Fla. Stat. (1974 Supp.).

H. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORT THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION.

As stated at the outset of this Brief, the real issue on this appeal is whether the developer of a condominium community can evade the Condominium Act merely by the way he structures the community.

The Developer did not have to structure the community in the way it did. For example, it could have:

- a) Made the entire community a single condominium. In that case, there is no question but that the Common Properties would have been common elements of the single condominium.
- b) Made The Towers of Quayside a phase condominium. <u>See</u>, \$718.403, Fla. Stat. Under this scenario, the Developer could avoid having to pay assessments on unbuilt units, yet still physically develop the condominium in stages. The Developer would not be forced to add all proposed phases to the condominium. Again, the Common Properties would have been common elements.
- c) Made each building a separate condominium, as was done, but provide for their operation by a single association. The Common Properties would thus be either part of the common elements of each of the condominiums (in undivided shares), or title to them would rest in the Association as "association property", \$718.103(3), in which case the Association would, even under the DIVISION's incorrect interpretation, be the entity responsible for the operation of "condominium property", and would be the only "association" extant in the community.
- d) Created a <u>Palm Greens</u> structure, with the Master Association as the technical condominium association, with individual "sub-associations".

Instead, the Developer structured the community in the way it did, creating separate associations to operate each condominium and the Common Properties.

The interpretation of the Condominium Act urged by Petitioners is both contrary to legislative intent, and the realities of condominium development. Any association which is responsible for the operation of "condominium property" should be governed by the Condominium Act, unless, like Palm Beach Leisureville, it has non-condominium homeowners among its members. Only then will condominium unit owners be afforded the rights, privileges, and protections under which they purchased. To conclude otherwise would be to permit wholesale circumvention of the consumer protection afforded to Respondent and every other condominium unit owner in the State by the provisions of Chapter 718.

A purchaser of a condominium unit should be able to be assured that what he sees is what he gets, and that there is no sleight of hand operating behind the scenes.

What does Respondent see at The Towers of Quayside? A community comprised of only condominiums, in which his unit is controlled and assessed by, and subject to lien and foreclosure by, two associations. Both associations are funded by, and comprised of, condominium unit owners. In the process of making his way between his front door and Biscayne Boulevard, he probably needs a surveyor to tell him where one association's jurisdiction ends and the other's begins. When using the recreation facilities in the community, he probably needs to carry a checklist to make sure who is

responsible for their operation. The swimming pool? That's the Condominium Association. The tennis courts? That's the HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION. The restaurant? Well, he approaches it on property operated by condominium No. 4's association, but HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION actually runs the restaurant.

In the facilities on the Common Properties, who does Respondent meet? Other condominium unit owners. Does he share the facilities with single-family homeowners, or have not been "condominiumized"?

Under these facts, it is absurd to suggest that if Respondent turns one way, he is protected by the Condominium Act, while a wrong turn leaves him without those protections.

Petitioners and Amici raise the Legislature's creation of a "residential planned development study commission" in Chapter 84-368, §26, Laws of Florida.

First, it is not clear that the Study Commission is empowered to report on communities such as The Towers of Quayside, as opposed to single-family home communities with mandatory membership associations, or mixed communities like Palm Beach Leisureville.

Second, the Study Commission is not empowered to construe the existing Condominium Act. That is solely the province of the courts.

The Study Commission is directed to recommend "proposed legislation". It may well decide and recommend that no legislation is necessary for communities such as The Towers of Quayside, as the existing Condominium Act already applies. Indeed, it would be bound to come up with such a recommendation, based on the decision of the Third District.

The Legislature, in creating the Study Commission, may well have been reacting to this Court's opinion in Raines, supra, dealing with master associations which operate both condominium and non-condominium properties. Nothing in the Legislature's enactment of Chapter 84-368, §26, Laws of Florida, indicates an intent by the Legislature that HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION not be within the scope of Chapter 718.

Amici Curiae BUILDERS ASSOCIATION and THE GARDENS, on pages 21-23 of their Brief, raise some supposedly "unsolvable issues" created by the Third District's decision. For those issues which are clearly stated (all of which assume HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION already has title to the Common Properties), there are very clear answers. There is one caveat: the Third District has not held that an association in a mixed community, such as Palm Beach Leisureville, is governed by Chapter 718.

Is all property owned by HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION automatically converted into condominium property? Within the definition of "condominium property" as contained in §718.103(11), Fla. Stat., the answer is yes. As discussed earlier, however, the Third District's decision does not deal with "title" to property. The Legislature recognizes that condominium property may be titled in the associations themselves, §718.103(3), Fla. Stat., or in third parties. §718.114, Fla. Stat.

Is this kind of condominium property a common element? No. As discussed earlier, "condominium property" encompasses more than units and common elements.

How will property ownership be determined? Assuming that title to the property rests in the association, it will stay there. Further, this question incorrectly assumes that condominium property is necessarily part of the common elements, and ignores an association's right to acquire title to property in its own name. See, \$\$718.114, 718.111(7-9), Fla. Stat.

How will ownership of the property be reflected in the public records? Assuming that title to the property vests in the association, it will be reflected as such.

How will the unit owners be taxed, given that the Association is currently taxed itself, as the owner of the Common Properties? Section 718.120(1), Fla. Stat., provides that no ad valorem taxes shall be separately assessed against rec facilities if they are owned by the association. Instead, they shall be assessed against the condominium parcels, and not upon the condominium property as a whole. In other words, association property is to be treated for ad valorem tax purposes the same as common elements.

Section 193.023(5), Fla. Stat., describes how the property appraiser is to accomplish this. If there are problems with the property appraiser's office in this regard, they can be worked out, either amicably or through litigation. Indeed, there is nothing to suggest that such problems exist at the present time, with respect to other association properties at other condominium

developments.

Are individual unit owners now personally liable for acts or omissions of the HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, as without the Third District's decision HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION was basically independent and had its separate property with which to respond in damages? This question incorrectly assumes that any condominium unit owner is personally liable for acts or omissions of his association beyond his share of common expenses. §718.119, Fla. Stat. Further, the question incorrectly assumes that if the HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION suffered an adverse judgment, it would not turn around and assess its members for the funds necessary to satisfy the judgment. The question also improperly assumes that somehow the unit owner's condominium parcel might now be subject to execution as a result of a judgment against the Association. This is not the case. \$718.119, Fla. Stat.

Are unpaid mechanics' lienors now barred from filing liens on the Common Properties? No, as such lienors are not barred from placing liens on any association property. Section 718.121, Fla. Stat., only prohibits the filing of liens on "common elements", and not on association property.

Are contracts entered into by a developer-controlled board of directors now voidable upon turnover of control of the association, pursuant to Section 718.302, Fla. Stat.? Yes. This right of cancellation, incidentally, has also existed for over ten years. §711.13, Fla. Stat. (1973); §711.66(5), Fla. Stat. (1974 Supp.).

Finally, on page 23, Amici BUILDERS ASSOCIATION and THE GARDENS note some other features of the Condominium Act which HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION must now comply with, all of which were enacted for the protection of condominium unit owners. HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION must now obtain the consent of a majority of the unit owners in order to increase its annual budget for common expenses by more than 15%. \$718.112(2)(e), Fla. Stat. In litigation between a unit owner and his association concerning the Condominium Act or the condominium documents, the prevailing party is entitled to recover attorney's fees. Finally, HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION will now be required to pay to DIVISION an annual fee of \$.50 per residential unit operated by the Association, for deposit in the Florida Condominium's Trust Fund.

Each of these provisions is fair, reasonable, and enacted for the benefit and protection of condominium unit owners.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing:

This Court has improvidently accepted jurisdiction based on non-existent conflict of decision, and its "Writ of Certiorari" should be discharged.

In the alternative,

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